
 

BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 26, 2015 

8:00 a.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING AND AGENDA 

BI-STATE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY / METRO 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FRIDAY, JUNE 26, 2015, 8:00 A.M. 
Headquarters 

707 North First Street, 6th Floor Board Room 
St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

 
This location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  Individuals with disabilities needing information or 
communication accommodations should call Metro at (314) 982-1400; for TTY access, call Relay 711.  
Sign language interpreter services or other accommodations for persons with hearing or speech 
disabilities will be arranged if a request for such service is made at least two days in advance of the 
meeting.  Large print material, Braille material or other formats will also be provided upon request. 

Agenda Item Disposition Presentation 
1. Call to Order Approval Chairman Dietzel 
2. Roll Call 
3. Recognition of Former Commissioner Hugh Scott 

 
4. Minutes of April 24, 2015, Open Session Board Meeting 
5. Report of Treasurer  
6. Report of President 
7. Finance & Administration Committee Report 
8. Audit Committee Report 
9. Operations Committee Report 
10. Adjustment of Consent Agenda 
11. Consent Agenda Item(s) 

Quorum 
Information 
 
Approval 
Information 
Information 
Information 
Information 
Information 
Approval 
Approval 

S. Bryant 
Chairman Dietzel /  
J. Nations 
Chairman Dietzel 
Commissioner Buehlhorn 
J. Nations 
Commissioner Kicielinski 
Commissioner Gully 
Commissioner Buehlhorn 
Chairman Dietzel 
Chairman Dietzel 

(a) Contract Award to CGN & Associates for 
Procedure Review Consultant Services  (Audit  
Committee Recommends Approval) 

(b) Contract Award to Gillig Corporation for Purchase 
of Low Floor Transit Buses (Operations Committee 
Recommends Approval) 

(c) Contract Award to St. Louis Bridge Construction 
Company for the Ewing Yard Retaining Wall 
Remediation Design-Build Project (Operations 
Committee Recommends Approval) 

(d) Contract Extension of Time of Performance With 
Illinois Excavators, Inc. for Illinois Slopes 
Stabilization Services and Scour Protection – Phase 
2 Construction  (Operations  Committee 
Recommends Approval) 

(e) Sole Source Contract Authorization for Hardware 
and Software Maintenance Agreements (Finance & 
Administration  Committee Recommends 
Approval) 

Approval 
 
 
Approval 
 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
Approval 
 
 
 

J. Nations / K. Klevorn  / 
K. Brittin / S. Hockel /  
L. Jackson 
J. Nations / R. Friem /  
L. Jackson 
 
J. Nations / R. Friem /  
F. Bakarich / L. Jackson 
 
 
J. Nations / R. Friem / 
F. Bakarich / L. Jackson 
 
 
 
J. Nations / K. Kinkade /  
L. Jackson 
 
 



Board of Commissioners  
June 26, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 

Agenda Item Disposition Presentation 
(f) Sole Source Contract Award to Interior 

Investments, Inc. for Herman Miller Systems 
Furniture (Finance & Administration Committee 
Recommends Approval) 

12. Board Compliance and Ethics Training (Presented to 
Finance & Administration Committee) 

13. Transit Capital Program Overview (Presented to Operations 
Committee) 

14. Financial Statements, FY 2015, Third Quarter (Presented to 
Finance & Administration Committee) 

15. Performance Indicators, FY 2015, Third Quarter (Presented 
to Finance & Administration) 

16. Unscheduled Business 
17. Public Comment* 
18. Executive Session  

If such action is approved by a majority vote of The Bi-
State Development Agency’s Board of Commissioners 
who constitute a quorum, the Board may go into closed 
session to discuss legal, confidential, or privileged 
matters under §610.021(1), RSMo; leasing, purchase or 
sale of real estate under §610.021(2); personnel actions 
under §610.021(3); discussions regarding negotiations 
with employee groups under §610.021(9); sealed bids, 
proposals and documents related to negotiated 
contracts under §610.021(12); personnel records or 
applications under §610.021(13); records which are 
otherwise protected from disclosure by law under 
§610.021(14); records relating to hotlines established 
for reporting abuse and wrongdoing under 
§610.021(16); or confidential or privileged 
communications with the District’s auditor, including 
auditor work products under §610.021(17). 

19. Call of Dates for Future Board Meetings 
20. Adjournment 

Approval 
 
 
 
Information 
 
Information 
 
Information 
 
Information 
 
Approval 
Information 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Information 
Approval 

J. Nations / L. Jackson 
 
 
 
J. Nations / K. Swagler 
 
J. Nations / R. Friem 
 
J. Nations / K. Klevorn 
 
J. Nations / K. Klevorn 
 
Chairman Dietzel 
Chairman Dietzel 
Chairman Dietzel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S. Bryant 
Chairman Dietzel 

 
*Public comment may be made at the written request of a member of the public specifying the topic(s) to 
be addressed and provided to the Agency’s information officer at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 


	BOARD MEETING COVER SHEET.062615
	NoticeBoardMeetingOpenSession062615
	Headquarters
	St. Louis, Missouri 63102
	Presentation
	Approval
	Chairman Dietzel

	Disposition
	Agenda Item

	TAB 4
	Open Session Item

	04-24-15 Board Open Session Minutes FINAL SIGNED.062615
	Resolution692ContractAwardLeonUniformSIGNED.062615
	Resolution693ContractAwardBarnesCareSIGNED.062615
	Resolution689ContractExtensionLegalServicesSIGNED.062615
	Resolution690ContractExtensionTransystemsIncSIGNED.062615
	Resolution691ContractModificationMaidaIncSIGNED.062615
	Resolution687BankAccountInternalServiceFundSIGNED.062615
	Resolution679ApprovalTransitSecurityGrantApplicationsAuthorizationSIGNED.062615
	Resolution680ApprovalMoDOTGrantAgmtsFY16SIGNED.062615
	Resolution681ApprovalGrantApplicationsAmendmentsIDOT - SIGNED.062615
	Resoltuion682ApprovalFY16OperatingCapitalBudgetSIGNED.062615
	Resolution683ApprovalFY16FederalGrantApplicationsSIGNED.062615
	Resolution684ExecutionGrantAgreementsMoDOTOperatingAssistSIGNED.062615
	Resolution686ApprovalApplyGrantAgmtFAAandIDOT.SIGNED.062615
	TAB 5
	Open Session Item

	TreasurersReportApril2015.062615
	Revised April 2015 Treasury Report
	April 2015 Treasury Report
	PG 1 & 2 Treas Report Summary  Sheet  NEW
	Page 3 April Treasury
	PG 4 Treas Report
	PG 5 Treas Rep Invest Descrip NEW
	PG 6 Invest Graph Treas - 4 30 15
	PG 7 Fuel Hedging - 4 30 15
	PG 8 Treasr Purch Rept - 4 30 15

	PG 10 Ratings - 4 30 15
	Sheet1


	PG 11 Cross-County Bonds
	Sheet1


	TAB 7
	Open Session Item

	05-15-15 Finance Admin Committee Open Session Min FINAL SIGNED. 062615
	TAB 8
	Open Session Item

	05-22-15 Audit Committee Open Session Minutes FINAL-SIGNED.062615
	TAB 9
	05-19-15 Operations Committee Open Sess Min FINAL SIGNED.062615
	TAB 11(a)
	Open Session Item

	ContractAwardCGNAssocProcedureReviewConsultantSvcs.062615
	Bi-State Development Agency / Metro
	Agenda Item
	Board of Commissioners
	From:    John M. Nations
	President & CEO
	UObjectiveU:
	To present to the Board of Commissioners for approval, a request for authorization to award a single proposal contract to CGN & Associates, Inc., d/b/a CGN Global, for Procedure Review Consultant Services.
	UCommittee Disposition:
	This item was presented and discussed at the Audit Committee Meeting on May 22, 2015. The Audit Committee voted to recommend that the Board of Commissioners approve this request at the June 26, 2015, Board Meeting.
	UBoard Policy:
	Board Policy Chapter 50.010.E(1)(b) – Board approval is required for non-competitive (single proposal) procurements that exceed $100,000.00.
	UFunding SourceU:
	Funding is provided through the United States Department of Homeland Security, Transportation Security Grant Program (TSGP) Funds.
	UBackgroundU:
	Under the Bi-State Development Agency/Metro’s (BSDA/Metro) System Safety Program Plan (SSPP), BSDA/Metro has committed to conducting emergency preparedness drills on a three-year cycle.  The first year is a table top drill (talk through scenarios).  Y...
	 The HSEEP After Action Report for the St. Louis 2011 Regional drill had a finding stating BSDA/Metro security information dissemination process had gaps internally and externally.
	 The 2012 BSDA/Metro Security Exercise HSEEP After Action Report included an improvement plan to revise MetroLink Standard Operating Procedure 106.20 to include that the Operations Control Center should contact Public Safety to call the police during...
	The Department of Homeland Security (DHS) provides grant funding to the owners and operators of public transit systems under the Transit Security Grant Program.  Transit systems include passenger rail, intracity bus networks, and ferry systems.  Eligi...
	The TSGP program provides funds to protect critical surface transportation infrastructure and the traveling public from acts of terrorism.  BSDA/Metro has participated in the TSGP since FY2005.  Qualified transit agencies across the United States comp...
	The proposed grant would be in support of Funding Priority Area A, an Operational Activity, conducting drills and exercises.   Of the four (4) National Preparedness Goals (NPG), mitigation and response are addressed in this scope of work.  Mitigating ...
	A review of the BSDA/Metro’s Emergency Response Communication procedures is needed in order to improve communication shortfalls that may jeopardize the ability to respond quickly to an emergency.  This situation could impact all aspects of BSDA/Metro’...
	The proposed TSGP grant scope of work includes:
	 The first phase is the evaluation of the communication procedures.  There are three steps in the first phase.
	o During the first step, the consultant will conduct a review of MetroLink, MetroBus, Metro Call-A-Ride, Metro Public Safety, Bus Communication, Safety and other BSDA/Metro Operations procedures to identify communication gaps between BSDA/Metro groups...
	o During the second step, the consultant will interview staff and analyze BSDA/Metro regarding the communication procedures.
	o The third step will be to present the report findings.
	 The second phase is a table top exercise based on the communication report findings.  The exercise will include first responder agencies.  The consultant would design and conduct an exercise to evaluate any recommended procedural updates.
	Communication gaps were identified in previous drills.  The proposed scope of work qualified as a fundable project under the TSGP grants. BSDA/Metro applied for this TSGP grant and was awarded funds.
	UAnalysis:
	On April 8, 2015, BSDA/Metro issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 15-RFP-101566-CB for Procedure Review Consultant Services. A Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Goal was not recommended for this project. However, DBE firms were invited to par...
	The RFP was advertised in BSDA/Metro’s iSupplier Portal.  The portal is BSDA/Metro’s web-based communication tool which is structured to allow offerors full and open access to view, communicate, and submit proposals on active solicitations. Ten (10) f...
	On May 6, 2015, one proposal was received from CGN & Associates, Inc., d/b/a CGN Global.  Other firms that had initially shown interest were queried to determine why only one proposal was received: one did not respond, and others had no interest in th...
	The single proposal was reviewed, and pricing has been determined to be fair and reasonable.  However, BSDA/Metro determined that cost could further be reduced by negotiating the scope of work requirements.
	The intent is to negotiate and award a contract to the firm in an amount not-to-exceed $122,000.
	UBoard Action Requested:

	Resolution701 CGN Global Contract for Consultant Review of Procedures 06-26-15
	TAB 11(b)
	Open Session Item

	ContractAwardGilligLowFloorBusPurchaseBP.062615
	Resolution700 Gillig Congract for Low Floor Buses 06-26-15
	TAB 11(c)
	Open Session Item

	ContractAwardStLouisBridgeConstructionCompanyEwingYardRetainingWallRemediationBP.062615.doc
	Bi-State Development Agency / Metro
	Board of Commissioners
	Agenda Item
	From:  John M. Nations, President & CEO
	UObjectiveU:
	To obtain Board of Commissioners approval to award a contract in an amount not to exceed $4,500,000, to St. Louis Bridge Construction Company (SLB) for the Ewing Yard Retaining Wall Remediation Design-Build project; 15-RFP-101065-CB, and authorization...
	Committee Disposition:
	UBoard Policy:
	UFunding SourceU:
	UBackground:
	UBoard Action Requested:

	Resolution698 St  Louis Bridge Contract re Ewing Yard 06-26-15
	Attachment1PhotoEwingRetWall_04.10.14_0001.062615
	Attachment2PhotoEwingRetWall_04.10.14_0039.062615
	Attachment3PhotoEwingRetWall_04.10.14_0068.062615
	TAB 11(d)
	Open Session Item

	ContractExtensionIllinoisExcavatorsIncILSlopesStabilizatinSvcsBP.062615
	Bi-State Development Agency / Metro
	Board of Commissioners
	From:  John M. Nations, President & CEO
	UObjectiveU:
	To present to the Board of Commissioners for approval, a request to extend the contract completion date through November 14, 2015, for the contract with Illinois Excavators, Inc. for construction associated with the Illinois Slope Stabilization Servic...
	UCommittee Disposition:
	This item was presented and discussed at the May 19, 2015, Operations Committee meeting.  The Committee recommends that the Board of Commissioners approve the Contract Extension of Time of Performance with Illinois Excavators, Inc., through November 1...
	UBoard Policy:
	UFunding SourceU:
	UBackground:
	UAnalysis:
	UBoard Action Requested:

	Resolution699 Contract Extension Illinois Excavators Inc  06-26-15
	AttachmentToBPIL ExcavatorsSlopes II photos.062615
	TAB 11(e)
	Sole Source Contract Hardware Software Maintenance BP. 062615
	Bi-State Development Agency / Metro
	Board of Commissioners
	Agenda Item
	From: John M. Nations, President & CEO
	UObjectiveU:
	To present to the Board of Commissioners a request to authorize the President & CEO to enter into sole source contracts for hardware and software maintenance agreements, as budgeted for FY2016.
	UBoard Policy:
	UFunding SourceU:
	UBackgroundU:
	UBoard Action Requested:

	Resolution704 Auth Pres CEO Contract for Hardware Software Maint 6-26-15
	TAB 11(f)
	Open Session Item

	SoleSourceContractAwardInteriorInvestmentsHermanMillerFurnitureBP.062615
	Bi-State Development Agency / Metro
	Board of Commissioners
	From: John M. Nations, President & CEO
	UObjectiveU:
	UCommittee Disposition:
	This item was discussed with the Finance & Administration Committee on May 15, 2015.  The Committee voted to recommend that the Board of Commissioners approve this request.
	UBoard Policy:
	UFunding SourceU:
	UBackgroundU:
	UAnalysis:
	UCommittee Action Requested:

	Resolution705 Appr Award to Interior Investments for HQ Furniture 6-26-15
	TAB 12
	Open Session Item

	Compliance and Ethics Training BP.062615
	Objective:
	Funding Source:
	Background:

	Attachment 1 BoardCompliance  Ethics Training Presentation.062615
	Slide Number 1
	Corporate Compliance and Ethics Overview
	What is Corporate Compliance?�	
	Why have a Corporate Compliance Program?�	
	What are the Benefits of Corporate Compliance?
	Essential Elements of a Compliance Program?�	
	Essential Elements of a Compliance Program?�	
	Corporate Compliance and Ethics Responsibilities�	
	What is an Ethical Culture?
	What is in Metro’s Board Code of Conduct?	
	What is in Metro’s Board Code of Conduct?	
	As Commissioners, You Represent Metro	
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Metro’s Social Media Guidelines
	Metro’s Social Media Guidelines
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Any Other Questions and Comments?

	TAB 13
	Open Session Item

	TransitCapitalProjectsOverviewBP.062615
	Bi-State Development Agency / Metro
	Board of Commissioners
	Agenda Item
	From:  John M. Nations, President & CEO
	UObjectiveU:
	To provide the Board of Commissioners with information about Bi-State/Metro’s long-term capital program goals, and management efforts to ensure the most efficient use of scarce capital funds to maintain transit service and safety standards.
	Committee Disposition:
	UBoard Policy:
	Board Policy Chapter 30.030, Section B., requires the Board of Commissioners to approve an annual operating and capital budget prior to the beginning of the ensuing fiscal year.
	UFunding Source:
	These funds are provided through numerous federal sources and through local appropriations from local jurisdictions.
	UBackground:
	UBoard Action Requested:

	FY2016CapitalBudgetPresentation062615
	Transit Capital Program Overview
	FY16-FY18 Capital Program
	Historic Capital Funding Resources
	Moving Ahead for Progress in the�21st Century (MAP-21)
	Sources of Capital Funds�FY 2016 – FY 2018�$619.6 million
	Local Capital Sources of Funds �FY 2016 - FY 2018�$155.2 million
	Federal Sources of Capital Funds�FY 2016 – FY 2018�$464.4M
	Discontinued Federal Funds FY2016 – FY 2018 �$3.8M (0.8%)
	Discretionary Federal Funds�FY 2016 – FY 2018�$55.3M Planned
	Rail-Specific Federal Funds �FY 2016 – FY 2018�$116.8M
	Bus, Bus Facility and System Needs Federal Sources FY 2016 – FY 2018�$212.3M
	Local Discretionary FHWA Federal Funds�FY 2016 – FY 2018�$72.6 M
	Capital Cash Flow By Use �FY 2016 - FY 2018�$619.6 million
	FY16-FY18 Major Capital Projects & Funding Categories
	FY16-FY18 Major Capital Projects & Funding Categories
	Bus Fleet Replacement Strategies
	Strategic Transit Management:�An Effort In Transition
	Transit Strategic Plan:�Functional Role
	Transit Strategic Plan:�Guiding Programs
	Transit Strategic Plan:�Development Process
	Transit Strategic Plan:�Process Timeline

	TAB 14
	Open Session Item

	FinancialsThirdQtrFY15.062615
	01- March 2015 Combined Companies Financial
	Combined Income Revised

	02- March 2015 Executive Services Balance
	02- March 2015 Exec Service Income
	02 - Executive Services CRD - 3Q15
	Agency FY15 3rd Qtr

	02 - Executive Services Cash Flow - 3Q15
	02 Agency 3Q15

	01- March 2015 Transit Balance
	01- March 2015 Transit Income
	01- March 2015 Transit Grants and Assistance
	CR&D FY15 XCO
	01- FS Aging Schedule 28-Mar-15
	01- Capital  Expenditures on active projects for March 2015
	03- March 2015 Arch Balance
	03- March 2015 Arch Income
	03 - Arch CRD - 3Q15
	3rd Qtr FY15

	03 - Arch Cash Flow - 3Q15
	FY15 3rd Qtr

	06- March 2015 Parking Balance
	06- March 2015 Parking Income
	06 - Parking CRD - 3Q15
	3rd Qtr FY15

	06 - Parking Cash Flows - 3Q15
	FY15 3rd Qtr

	15- March 2015 Riverfront Attractions Balance
	15- March 2015 Riverfront Attractions Income
	15 - Riverfront CRD - 3Q15
	Riverfront - 3rd Qtr FY15

	15 - Riverfront Cash Flows - 3Q15
	FY15 3rd Qtr

	04- March 2015 Airport Balance
	04 - Airport CRD - 3Q15
	FY15 3rd Qtr

	04 - Airport Cash Flows - 3Q15
	FY15 3rd Qtr


	TAB 15
	PerformanceIndicatorsThirdQtrFY15.062615
	TransitExecSummary
	BusEntSummary
	AnnualTransitPerformance
	SystemProfile
	MBProfile
	MLProfile
	C-A-RProfile
	BusEntProfile
	AvgWeekday(Board)
	Boardings(Board)
	BusPsgrsByJur(Board)
	PassgrRev(Quarterly)
	RevMiles(Board)
	TotMiles(Board)
	RevHrs(Board)
	TotHrs(Board)
	ExpByMode(Board)
	UnschAbs(Board)
	Arch(Board)
	Garage(Board)
	RiverfrontAttractions(Board)
	Airport(Board)
	Agency(Board)
	Definitions




